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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS' OF SABB TAKAFUL COMPANY (A SAUDI
JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SABB Takaful Company (the “Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 3) December 2018, the statements of income and
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respocts, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS") as modified by the Saudi Arabian Monectary Authority (“SAMA™) for the accounting of
zakat and income tax,

Busis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, OQur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics, as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements, and
we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis for ous
opinien.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit mattcrs are those matters that, in our professionsi judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, a description of how our audit
addressed the matter provided in that context:
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STATEMENTS TO

THE SHAREHOLDERS' OF SABE TAKAFUL COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

(continued)

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
Valuation of ultimate clalm labllities arising | We understood, evaluated and tested key controls
Jrom insurance contracts over the claim liabilities processes of the Company.

As st 31 December 2018, gross outstanding
claims including claims incurmed bu! not
reported {IBNR} amounted to
Saudi Riyals 71.1 million as reported in
Note 11 to the financia! statements.

The estimation of ultimate insurance contract
labilities involves a significant degres of
judgments. The liabilitics are based on the
best-cstimate of uitimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at a given date,
whether reported or not, together with the
related claims handling costs.

In particular, estimates of IBNR and the use
of actuarial and statistical projections involve
significant judgments, A range of methods
such as [ncurred Development Method,
Expected Claims Ratio Method and Incurred
Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method were used by
the actuary to determine these provisions,
Underlying these methods are a number of
explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the
expected settlement amount and settlement
pattemns of claims,

We considered this as a key audit matter since
use of management assumptions and
judgments could result in material over /
understaternent  of  the  Company's
profitability,

Refer to notes 2 and 25 1o the financial
statements  which  explain  the - valuation
methodology used by the Company and
critical judgments and estimates.

We evalusted the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management's cxpert by
considering their professional qualifications and
experience and assessing their relationship with the
entity.

In obtaining sufficient audit evidence to assess the
integrity of data used az inputs into the actuarial
valuations, we tested on sample basis, the
completeness and accuracy of underlying claims
data utilised by the Company’s actuary in estimating
the IBNR by comparing it to accounting records.

In order to challenge management's methodologies
and assumptions, we were assisted by our actuary to
understand and evaluate the Company's sctuaniaf
practices and provisions established. In order to gain
comfort over the actuarial report issued by
management’s expert, our actuary performed the
following:

- Evaluated whether the Compeny’s actusrial
methodologics were consistent with generally
sccepted actuarial practices and with priot years.
We sought sufficient justification for any
significant differences:;

- Assessed the reasonablencss of key actuarisl
assumptions including claims ratios and expected
frequency snd severity of claims.; and

- Reviewed the sppropriateness of the calculation
methods and epproach along  with  the
assumptions used and pensitivities to the key
assurptions performed.

- Assessed tho adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures regarding assumptions used and
sensitivities as included in the accounting policies
and in note 25 to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS' OF SABB TAKAFUL COMPANY {A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

{continued)

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our sudht

Valuation of life Insurance contract
flabllities (Reserve for takaful activities)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had
rescrve for takaful activities amounting to
Saudi Riyais 352 million as reported in
Note 9a) to the financial statements. The
reserve for takaful activities represents the
unit linked takaful plan reserve.

Valuation of reserve for takaful activities
involves complex and subjective judgements
made by management and actuary about
variety of uncertain future outcomes,
including the estimation of economic
assumptions, such as investment return,
discount rates, and operating assumptions,
such as expense, mortlity and persistency,
Changes in these assumptions can result in
material impacts to the valuation of these
Habilities,

We considered this as a key audit matter since
the use of management assumptions and
judgments could result in material over /
undersisternent of  the  Company's
profitability.

Refer to notes 2 and 25 to the financial
statements which explain the valuation
methodology used by the Company and
critical judgments and estimates.

We understood, evaluated and tested key controls in
relation to reserve for takaful activities processes of
the Company.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’'s expert by
congidening their professional qualifications and
experience and sssessing their relationship with the
entity.

In obtaining sufficient audit evidence to assess the
integrity of data used as inputs into the actuarial
valuations, we tested on a sample basis, the
completeness and accuracy of underlying data
utilised by the Company's actuary in estimating the
reserves for takaful activities by comparing it to
accounting records.

In order to chalienge management's methodologies
and assumptions, we were assisted by our actuary to
understand and evajuate the Company's sctuarial
practices and the provisions established. in order to
gain comfort over the actuarial repost issued by
management’s expert, our actuary performed the
following:

- Evaluated whether the Company's sctuaris!
methodologies were congistent with generaily
accepted actuarial practices and with prior
years. We sought sufficient justification for any
significant differences;

- Assessed key actuarisl assumptions such as
investment return, discount rates, and operating
assumptions, such as expense, mortality and
petsistency, and

- Reviewed the appropriateness of the calculation
methods and  spproach along with  the
assumptions used and sensitivities to the key
assumptions performed.

~  Assessed the adequacy of the Company's
disclosures regarding assumptions used and
sensitivities as inciuded in the accounting
policies and in nmote 25 to the financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS' OF SABB TAKAFUL COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
(continued)

Other Information inciuded in the Company's 2018 Annual Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Directors”™) are responsible for the other information.
The Other information consists of the information included in the Company's 2018 annust report,
other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to
be made availsble to us after the dats of this auditors® report.

Our apinion on the financial staterents does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing 5o, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement therein, we
are required 0 communicate the mstier to those charged with governance,

Responsibliities of The Directors and Those Charged with Govermance for the Financlal
Stazements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financis! statements in
accordance with the IFRS as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and tax, the applicable
requirements of the Company's Law and the Company’s By-laws, and for such intemnal contro! a5 the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are fice fiom
material misstatement, whetker due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the finencial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Dircctors cither intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Internations! Standerds on Auditing es endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arige
from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the sggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE AUMT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS' OF SABB TAKAFUL COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
(continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordence with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabis, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

s  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financis! statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etvor,
as fraud tmay involve collusion, forgery, intentione! omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of imtemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

+ Evaluate the sppropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eatirnates and related disclosures made by the Directors;

« Conciude on the appropristeness of the Directors’ use of the going concem basis of secounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
ot conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue ns a going
concern. If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ repont to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concemn; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statoments represent the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commaunicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in
inteynal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonebly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,
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INDEPENDENT AUINTORS® REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO
THE SHAREROLDERS' OF SABB TAKAFUL COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
{contnued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial ststements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors™ repord unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in owr report because the adverse consequences
of doing 50 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

AlAzem & AlSudairy
PricewaterhouseCeopers Certified Public Accountants
P. O. Box 8282 P. 0. Box 10504
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SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Contributions and retakaful receivables, net
Retakaful share of unearned contributions
Retakaful share of outstanding claims
Deferred palicy acquisition costs
Investments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financiat assets
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Statutory deposit
Accrued income on statutory deposit

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an Y

31 Decesmber

2018

(Audited)

Notes SAR000
7 244,019
b) 12,650
9rb) 6,969
11(b) 57,730
9¢c) 1,019
{(c} 352,115
4(b) 120,899
0 1,232
146
1,859
8 34,000
3,509
836,147

B

esefinancial statements.

31 December
2017
(Audited)
SAR'G00

239,099
14,496
10,802
66,082

824

381,037
137,864
1,738
229
1,728
34,000
2,800

860,699




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AT 3| DECEMBER 2018

LIABILITIES

Accrued and other liabilities
Provision for zakat and income tax
Retakaful balances payable
Unearned contributions

Unearned retakaful commission
Gross oufstanding claims

Unexpired risk reserve

Non-unit reserve

Provision for employees” end-of-service benefits
Surplus distribution payable
Reserve for takaful activities
Accrued income on statutory deposit

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Takafu! operations’ surplus

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND TAKAFUL OPERATIONS?
SURPLUS

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations
Accumuiated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES, TAKAFUL OPERATIONS®
SURPLUS AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integra! part of thes

financial statements.

Notes

{2
i3

oy
9¢c)
1i(h)
9(e)
9(d)
10
16

9(a),4(c)

I3
14

31 December
2018
(Aundited)
SARG00

19,378
6,034
5,880
9,565
2,290

71,186
2,991
5,579
4,916
6,593

352,115
3,509

490,636
490,036

340,000
14,788

(213)

(8,464)

346,111

836,147

31 Decentber
2017
{Audited)
SAR0G0

18,710
4,452
8,574

14,389
2,555

83,529
5,531
4311
7,091
6,593

381,037
2,800

539,572

539,572

340,000
14,577
(175)
(3,275)

354,127

890,699

Ay



SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013

20418 2087
fdudited) {Audited)
Nene SAR'O00 SAR G0
REVENUES
Gross contributions written
« Family ‘Takaful 17 119,544 148,386
- General Takafid 17 20,422 26,698
139,266 175,084
Retakafil contribution ceded
Local retakalful contribution ceded 17 {$.201) {7,656}
- Foreign retakaful contribution ceded 17 (33,210) {45,639
Planhoider charges 17 15,003 20,941
Net contributions written 112,558 142,730
Changes in unearned contributions 17 4,824 6,185
Changes in retakafid share of uncarned contributions 17 {3,831 {3,174)
Net coatributions earned 113,549 145,741
IFees and commission income 5,836 5,143
Totsl revenue 1i9,385 155,484
Ciross claims paid FHa) (45,338) (45,517
Retakatul share of claims paid Hfa) 34,888 33,054
Surrenders and maturitics 18 {95,954} {73,728
Net cluims and other henefits paid (106,404) (86,183)
Changes in nutstunding claims, net 2,933 {1,034}
Changes in H3NR, nel 1,058 {(4h
Net claims and other benefits incurred (102.413) (87.691)
Changes in reserve for lakiful activitics Ve 17983 (23,233}
Changes in non-um! reserve {1,268) (4,311
Changes in unexpired risk reserve 2,541 (5,331)
Policy acquisition cos(s {3,582) (5,638)
Tetal urderwriting costs and expenses (86,709 {126.404)
Net underwritiog income 32,676 25,080
YI'HLE, ) )
Generat and administrative expenses i 42,16 {39,805}
Eebale income 1,598 1,340
Income Itom deposits 8,312 2,655
hcome fram sukuk 4,237 5,035
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES, NET {31,620} (30.56%)
Total income/ {foss) tor the year 1,056 {5,483)
Total (income) loss for the year attributed 1o the tukaful operations - -
‘Fatat incomsef (loss) for the year atributable to the sharcholders 1,056 (5.485)
Earaings / (loss) per share (SAR per share) 20 043 (0.16)




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes

Total ineome/ (loss} for the year
Other comprehensive facome/ {loss)
fremns thar witl be reclassified to statement of income in subsegquent periods
- Fuir value change in available for sale invesiments - unrealized dfc)
Fair value chunge in reserve for (akalul activilies - unrealized fa)
Ttems that will not be reclasyified to statemeny af income in Subsequent periods

Re-mcasurements of relirement benefit obligations i

Toial comprehensive income/ {foss) Tor the year

The accompanying notes | 10 27 fo

2018
SAR'G6Y

1,046

4,064

(4,004)

(38)

LOE8

0i7
SAR GGG

(5,485)

25,005

(25,008)

(175)

{5,660




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Remeasurements
of refirement
Share Statutory benefit Accumulated
Capital Reserve abligations Losses Total
SAR000 SAR'000 SAR'0O0 SAR’000 SAR'0D0
Balance us at | January 2018 340,000 14,577 (178) (3,275} 351,127
Total comprehensive income for the
year . - . 1,056 1,056
Provision (or zakal and income tax
(Note [5) - - - (6,034} (6,034)
Transfer to statulory reserve
(Note 14) - 211 - @in -
Remeasurements of retirement
benefit obligations - - {38) - (38)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 340,000 14,788 (213) (8,464) 346,111
Remeasurements
of retirement
Share Statutory benefit Aceumulated
Capital Reserve obligations Losses Total
SAR0G SARG00 SAR'D0D SAR™000 SAR00
Balance as at | January 2037 340,000 14,577 - 6,624 361,204
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - - {5,485) (5.485)
Provision for zakat and income tax
{Notc 15) - - - (4,414) (4,414)
Remeasurements of retirement
henefit obligations - (173) - {175)
Balance as a1 31 December 2017 340,000 14,577 {175} (3,275) 351,127
U

The accompanying notes | to 27 form an integral part of tl

s¢ financial statemenis.
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SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

28 2017
Noles SAR 0G0 SAR G048
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/ {Joss) for the year 1,086 (5,485)
Adjustment for non-cash irems:
Amortisation 610 499
Depreciation 83 80
[ncome from sukuk (4,237) (5,035)
Gain on sale of fixed asscls - (19
Provision of impairment on contribulion and retukatul
receivables 5 504 1052
Provision for employees' end-of-service benefils 10 £,046 37
(938) (8.871)

Changes in aperating assets and liabilities:
Contributions and retakaful receivables, net 1,342 {(2,510)
Retakalnl share of unearned contributions 3,833 3174
Retakalul share of outstanding claims 8,352 (9,719
Deferred policy acquisition costs (195) 261
Available-Tor-sale lnancial asscts 28,922 (27,297}
Prepaid expenses and other assets 506 16
Accrued and other liahilities 668 5,435
Retakaful balances payable (2,694) 559
Uncarned contributions 4.824) {6,185)
Unearned retakaful commission (265} (239)
Ciross cutslanding claims (12,343} 11,227
Uncxpired risk reserve (2,340} 5,331
Non-unif reserve 1,268 4311
Surplus distribution payable - {(4n
Reserve for takalul activities {28,922} 27,297

(7,830) 2,943
HEmployees' end-of-service benehits paid 10 (3,259 (151)
Zakat and income tax paid 151c) (4,452) (5,663)
Net cash used in operating activities (15,54%) {2,871)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturity of held-to-maturity financiat assets 17,000 50,000
Income received from sukuk 4,202 3,266
Purchase of intangible asscls (741) (1,104}
Purchase of fixed asscls - 201y
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - i9
Net cash generated from investing activities 20,461 53,980
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 4,920 51,109
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 7 239,099 187,990
Cash and cash equivalents, al the end of the year 7 244,019 239,099

Non-cash supplemental information:
Net change in lair value of available-lor-sate investments 4(c) 4,064 25,005

e

—

The accompanying netes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page @ |2



SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1 ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

SABB Takaful Company (the “Company”} is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 1010234032 dated 20 Jumad Awal 1428H
{corresponding to 6 June 2007). The Company is listed on Saudi Stock Exchange ‘Tadawul’. The address
of the registered office of the Company is P. O. Box 9086, Riyadh 11413, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The purpose of the Company is to transact takaful operations and all related activities. Its principal lines
of business include individual Family (Protection and Savings - Individual), Group Family (Protection
and Savings ~ Group) and General Takaful preducts. The Company operates only in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia.

2 BASES OF PREPARATION

a) Basis of presentation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
([FRSs) as modified by Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA) for the accounting of zakat and income
tax, which requires, adoption of all IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™)
except for the application of International Accounting Standard (1AS) 12 - “Income Taxes” and IFRIC 21 -
“Levies” so far as these relate to zakat and income tax, As per the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519 dated
April 11, 2017 and subsequent amendments througl certain clarifications relating to the accounting for zakat
and income tax (“SAMA Circular™), the zakat and income 1ax are to be accrued on a quarterly basis through
shareholders equity under retained earnings,

The financial statement have been prepared under the going concern basis and the historical cost convention,
except for the measurement at fair value of available-for-sale investments and end of service benefits carried at
present values using the actuarial valuation and reserves for takaful activities,

The statement of financial positicn is not presented using a current/non-current classification, However, the
following items would generally be classified as non-current such as held-to-maturity investments, fixed assets,
intangible assets, statutory deposit and provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits. All other financial
statement line items would generally be classified as current.

The Company’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that it will be able to continue as a going concem in the foresceable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis,

The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arabian
Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for takafil operations and
shareholders® operations and presents the financial statements accordingly (Note 22). Assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses clearly attributabie to either activily are recorded in the respective accounts, The basis of
allocation of expenses from joint operations is determined and approved by the management and the Board of
Directlors.

The statement of financial position, staiements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the takaful
operations and shareholders® operations which are presented in Note 24 of the financial statements have been
previded as supplementary financial information to comply with the requirements of the guidelines issued by
SAMA implementing regulations and is not required under IFRSs. SAMA implementing regulations requires
the clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and the
sharcholders’ operations. Accordingly, the statements of financial position, statements of income,
comprehensive income and cash flows prepared for the takaful operations and sharcholders® operations as
referred to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the
respeclive operations.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in compliance with IFRS, the balances and transactions of
the insurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the sharcholders’ operations. Inter-
operation balances, transactions and unrealised gains or losses, if any, are eliminated in full during
amalgamation. The acceunting pelicies adopted for the insurance operations and sharcholders' operations are
uniform for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

i3
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SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTLES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[For the year ended 31 December 2018

2 BASES OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

b) Functional and presentational currency

The functional and presentational cwrrency of the Company is Saudi Rivals (SAR) which is also the
functional currency of the Company. The financial statements values are presented in Saudi Riyals
rounded to the nearest thousand {(SAR’000), unless otherwise indicated.

¢) Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending December 31.

d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial stalements requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although
these estimates and judgments are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results ultimatety may differ from thosc estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Follewing are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial
statemenis:

~ The ultimate liability arising from claims made under general takaful contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s
most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the
estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. Estimates are made at the end of
the reporting period both for the expected ultimate cost of elaim reported and for the expected ultimate cests of
claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™). Liabitities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input
of assessments for individual cases reported 1o the Company. At the end of each reporting period, prior year
¢laims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are made Lo the provision.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR} is an estimation of claims which are expected to be
reported subsequent to the date of statement of {inancial position, for which the insured event has occurred
prior to the date of statement of financial position. The primary technique adopled by management in
estitmating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is thal of using the past claims settiement trends to predict
future claims settlement trends. A range of methods is used by the actuaries to determine these provisions,

- The uitimate liability arising from claims made under individual and group family takaful contracts
The liability for individual and group family takaful contracts is either based on current assumptions or on
assumptions established at inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time, increased with a
margin for risk and adverse deviation.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidity, longevity, investment returns, expenses, lapse and
surrender rates and discount rates, The Company base mortality and morbidity tables on standard industry and
national tables which reflect historical experience, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s unique
risk exposure, product characteristics, target markets and own claims severity and {requency experience. For
those contracts that insure risk te longevity, prudent allowance is made for expected future mortality
improvements, but epidemics, as well as wide ranging changes to life style, could result in significant changes
to the expecled future mortality exposure. Reserve for takaful activities is calculated on the basis of an actuarial
valuation method by an independent appointed actuary through the use of current unit fund price method.

Lapse and surrender rates depend on product features, policy duration and external circumstances, such as sale
trends. Credible own experience is used in establishing these assumptions.

Liabilities arising under general, individual and group takaful contracts are independently reviewed and
certified by an appointed actuary.

- kmpairment of {inancial assets

The Company determines that available for sale equity financial assets are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the financial assets below its cost, The determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. fn making this judgment, the Company evaluates among
other factors, the normat volatility in share price, the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
- Impairment of receivables

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to collect all amounts due accerding to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difTiculties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganization,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The Company assesses receivables that are individually significant and receivables included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues 1o be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment. In making this
Judgment, the Company evaluates credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status being indicative of the
ability to pay all amounts due as per contractual terms.

- Fair value of financial instruments

Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated
fair values. The fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using
commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise
available are determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases the fair values are estimated from
observable data in respect of similar financial instruments or using models. Where market observable inputs are
not available, they are estimated based on appropriate assumptions. Where valuation techniques (for example,
madels) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of those that sourced them. All models are certified before they are used, and models are calibrated
1o ensure that outputs refiect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use
only ebservable data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own credit risk and counterparty risk), volatilities
and correlations require managenient to make estimates.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting pelicies applied in preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended 3{ December 2017
except for the new standards and adoption of the amendments to existing standards mentiened below which
have had efther insignificant effect or no financial impact on the financial statements of the Company on the
current peried or prior periods and are expected to have a insignificant effect in future period:

The Company adopled IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers” .IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014
and is effective for annual perieds commencing on or after January I, 2018. IFRS 15 outlines a single
comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current
revenue guidance, which is found currently across several Standards and Interpretations within 1FRS. It
established a new five-step model that witl apply to revenue arising {rom contracts with custemers. Under IFRS
135, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

The Company has opled for the modified retrospective application permitted by IFRS 15 upon adoption of the
news standard, Modified retrospective application requires the recognition of the cumulative impact of adoption
of IFRS 15 on all contracts as at January 1, 2018 in equity. IFRS-15 does not have & material impact on the
financial statement of the Company.

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the following new standards which have been issued but not yet
effective for the Company’s accounting year beginning on | January 2018 and is currently assessing their
impact;

- IFRS 9 - “Financial instruments”, In July 2014, the {ASB published IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which
will replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard incorporates new
classification and measurements requirements for financial assets, the introduction of an expected credit
logs impairment model which will replace the incurred toss model of 1AS 39, and new hedge accounting
requirements. Under 1FRS 9, alt financial assets will be measured at either amortised cost or {air value.
The basis of classification will depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. The standard retains most of IAS 39°s requirements for financial liabilities except
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

for those designaled at fair value through profit or loss whereby that parl of the fair value changes
attributable 1o own credit is to be recognised in other comprehensive income instead of the income
statement,

In September 2016, the [ASB published amendments to [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts that address the
accounting consequences of the application of IFRS 9 to inswrers prior to the publication of the
forthcoming acceounting standard for insurance contracts. The amendments introduce two options for
insurers: the deferral approach and the overlay approach. The deferral approach provides an entity, if
eligible, with a temporary exemption from applying 1FRS 9 until the earlier of the effective date of a new
insurance contract standard or 2022. The overlay approach allows an entity to remove from profit or loss
the effects of some of the accounting mismatches thal may occur before the new insurance contracts
standard is applied.

During 2018, the Company performed an assessment of the amendments and reached the conclusion that
its activities are predominantly connected with insurance. The Company intends to apply the temporary
exemption from IFRS 9 and, therefore, continue to apply 1AS 39 to iis financial assets and liabilities in its
reporling period starting on | January 2018 and through the vear ended 31 December 2018,

The Company is eligible and have chosen te apply the temporary exemption under the amendments (o
IFRS 4. The impact of the adeption of IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial information will, to a large
extent, have to take into account the interaction with the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. [ASE
through its amendments to {FRS 4 issued in September 2016 had allowed temporary exemption if a
Company meels the following criteria:

a) the Company has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9; and
b) its activities are predominantly connected with insurance that is defined as total percentage of
carrying amount of insurance liabilities is greater than 90% of its total liabilities,

During 2018, the Company performed a high-level impact assessment of IFRS 9. This preliminary
assessment i3 based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further
detailed analyses or additional reasonable and supportable information being made available to the
Company in the future. Qverall, the Company expects no significant impact on its statement of financial
position and equity, except for the effect of applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9. However, the
impact of the same is not expected to be significant. Af present it is not possible to provide reasonable
estimate of the effects of application of this new standard as the Company is yet to perform a detailed
review,

Foliowing is a brief on the new IFRS and amendments to 1FRS, effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019;

- IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The new slandard
eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessces under [AS 17, which distinguishes between on-
balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-balance
sheei accounting model. The Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard,

- IFRS 17 - “Insurance Contracls™, applicable for the period beginning on or after | January 2022, and will
supersede IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts™. Earlier adoption permitted if both IFRS 15 'Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ have also been apptied. The Company has
decided not to early adopt this new standard,

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are as follows:
Revenue recognition

Recognition of contribution and commission revenue

Contributions are recorded in the statement of income based on straight line method over the insurance
policy coverage period. Unearned contribution represents the portion of contribution written relating to
the unexpired period of coverage at the reporting date. The change in the provision for unearned
contribution is taken to the statement of income - takaful operations in order that revenue is recognized
over the period of rigk,

In case of unit-linked policies, planholder charges are recognised in the statement of income - takaful
operations in accordance with the terms of the contract with policyholders.

Commission income on retakaful contracts relating to general takafu! and individual family segments are
deferred and amorlised on a straight-line basis over the term of the retakafliil contracts,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Reinsurance commissions inciude profit participation on retakaful contracts. The Company recognises its
share of profits on accrual basis when the amounts can be determined with reasonable accuracy.

Invesiment income

Investment income on held-to-maturity investments and murabaha deposits are accounted for on an
effective interest basis. Investment income includes rebate pertaining to unit-linked investments,
calculated in accordance with the terms of agreement with Fund Manager and is accounted for on accrual
basis.

Claims
Claims consist of amounts payable o polieyhalders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net
of salvage and other recoveries.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not settied at the statement of
financial position date together with related claims handling costs, whether reported by the insured or not.
Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the statement of financial position date are made on the basis of
individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based on management’s judgment and the Company's prier
experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not reported including related claims
handling costs at the statement of financial position date.

The outstanding claims are shown on & gross basis and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separately.
Further, the Company does not discount its liabitity for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected o
be paid within one year of the statement of financial position date

Retakaful

The Company cedes its takaful risk in the normal course of business for all of its segments. Retakaful
contracts are contracts entered into by the Company under which the Company is compensated for losses on
takaful contracts issued. Re-takaful arrangements do nol relieve the Company from its obligations to
policyholders.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its retakaful contracts held are recognized as
retakaful assets. These assets consist of the retakaful share of setiement of claims and other receivables
such as profit commissions and the retakaful share of outstanding claims that are dependent on the
expected claims and benefits arising under the related retakaful contracts.

Amounts recoverable from or due to retakaful companies are recognized consistently with the amounts
associated with the underlying takaful contracts and in accordance with the terms of each retakaful
contract.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a retakaful asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount, Where the carrying amount of a retakaful asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is writien down to its recoverable amount. Impairment is recognized in
the statement of income - takaful operations,

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acguisition and renewal of takaful contracts are
deferred and amortized over the terms of the takaful coniracts to which they relate, similar (o
contributions earned. Al other indirect acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.
Amortizalion is recorded in the “Policy acquisition costs™ in the staiement of income.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amaortization period and are treated as a change in
accounting estimate.

An assessment is performed of the policies at each reporting date or more frequently if circumstances
exist which require assessment. §f the assumptions relating 1o fulure profitability of these policies are not
realized, the amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require write-offs in the
statement of income, Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the liability adequacy test at
each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liability adequacy test

Al each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy lests are performed to ensure the adequacy
of the insurance contracis liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these
tests management uses current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and ¢laims handling and
administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying amounts is immediately charged to the statement
of income by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests accordingly.

Receivables

Contribution receivables are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Contributions and retakaful balances receivable are recognised
when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for impairment al each reporting date and whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is
recorded in in the statement of income. Receivable balances are derecognised when the Company no
longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the receivable balance, which is normally the case
when the reccivable balance is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the balance are passed through to
an independent third parly. Receivables disclosed in note 5 fall under the scope of [FRS 4 “Insurance
contracts”.

Investments
The Company’s investments are classified as available-for-sale investiments and held-te-maturity
investments.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated.

Avaitable-for-sale financial assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are neither classified as
held for trading or held to maturity or loans and receivables, nor are designated al fair vajue through profit
or loss. Such investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
including transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment and subsequently
measured at fair value, Cumulative changes in fair value of such investments are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income. Realized gains or losses on sale of
these investments are reported in the related statements of income under “Realized gain / (loss) on
investments available for sale investments.”

Dividend, commission income and foreign currency gain/loss on available-for-sale investments are
recognized in the related staiements of income or statement of comprehensive income — shareholders’
operations, as part of the net investment income / lass.

Any significant or prolonged decline in fair value of available-for-sale investments is adjusted for and
reported in the related statement of comprehensive income, as impairment charges.

Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or
estimated fair values,

For unguoted investments if any, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar
invesiment or where the fair values cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques. The input 10 these models is taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Available-for-sale financial assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities represent assets associated with
contracts, for which the investment risk lies predominantly with the contract holder. These represent
investments in units of mutual funds, which are readily marketable.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Investments having fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive
intention and abiliy to hold to maturity are classified as held 1o maturity, Held 1o maturity investments are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment in vatue if any. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition using an effective yield basis. Any gain or
loss on such investments is recognised in the stalement of income when the investment is derecognised or
impaired. The fair value of commission-bearing items, if any is estimated based on discounted cash flows
using commission for items with similat terms and risk characteristics,
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Derecognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer conirols the
contractual rights that comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument
is sold, or all the cash flows ailributable to the instrument are passed through to an independent third party
and the Company has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Qffsetting

Financial assets and financial liabiities are offset and the net amount reporied in the statement of (inancial
position only when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and Lhere
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultanecusly,
Income and expense is not offset in the statement of income unless required or permitied by any
accounting standard or interpretation,

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized/ derecognized on the trade daie {i.c.
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require settiement of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more evenls that has occurred since
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in payments;

- It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

- Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated futwre cash flow
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the Company, including;

- adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors in the Company; or

- national or local economic conditions at the country of the issuers that correlate with defaults en
the assets.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset exists, the impairment is
determined as follows:

« Tor assets carried at fair value, impairment is the significant or prolong decline in the fair value
of the financial asset.

- TFor assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is based on estimated future cash flows that are
discounted at the original effective commission rate,

- For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or *prolonged’ requires judgment. A period of 12 months or
longer is censidered 1o be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant as
per Company policy. [n making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration
or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

[n making an assessment of whether an investment in debt instrument is impaired, the Company considers
the factors such as market’s assessment of credilworthiness as reflected in the bond yields, rating
agencics’ assessment of creditworthiness, country’s ability to access the capital warkets for new debt
issuance and probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary
or mandatery debt forgiveness. The amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
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the difference between the amortised cost and the cwrrent fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investiment previously recognised in the statement of income and statement of comprehensive income.

Motor vehicles

Meotor vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred. The cost less estimated
residual value of vehicles is depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of 4 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate. The carrying values of these assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the esthmated recoverable amount, the assets are written down (o their
recaverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
included in “Other operating income, net” in the statement of income.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic tife and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Amortization is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the assets as follows:
»  Software - 3 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed al least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumplion of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The
amorlization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of income.

Gains or losses arising from derecognizing an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of income
when the asset is derecognized.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessec are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to statement of income with in other operating expenses
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Empairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, land - are nol subject to depreciation and are
tested annwally for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest leve! for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units).
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Employees® end-of-service benefits

The Company operales an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor
Laws, Accruals are made at the present valne of expected future payments in respect of services provided by
the employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given 1o expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market vields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality
corporate bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. The benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. Remeasurements {actuarial
gains/ losses) as a result of experience adjusiments and changes in acluarial assumptions are recognised in
statement of comprehensive inceme.

Provisions, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past
events, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions are nol
recognised for fulure operating losses. Liabilities are recegnised for amounts te be paid in the future for goods
or services received, whether billed by the supplier or not.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharcholders.

Zakat and income taxes

The Company is subject 1o zakat in accordance with the regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and
Tax (“GAZT"). Zakat is computed on the Saudi sharcholders’ share of equity or net income using the
basis defined under the Zakat regulations. Income taxes are computed on the foreign sharcholders share of
net adjusted income for the year. Zakat and income fax is accrued on a quarierly basis through
shareholders’ equity under retained earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and murabaha deposits with an original matwrity of three
months or less at the date of acquisition.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreigh currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi
Riyals at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken
to the statements of income and comprehensive income, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of’
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial
transaction and are not subsequently restated.

As the Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dolars, foreign exchange gains and
losses are not significant and have not been disclosed separately.

Operating segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or
services (a business segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other
segments. The operaling results of the segment are reviewed reguiarly by the chief operating decision
maker to make decisions aboul resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available. For management purposes, the Company is organised
into business units based on their products and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follow:

(i) Individual Family Takaful products meet individual customer needs such as financial protection
for dependents in the event of death or disability of the planholder, children education, saving for
retirement and protection for the family and similar products. These products cater to various
segments of the Saudi market,
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Operating segments (continued)

(i) Group Family Takaful products provide cover for employees and their families in the event of
death or total and permanent disability, Packaged as group takaful solutions, they meet the
protection needs of groups of various natures and sizes and are ideal for corporations or
institutions.

(i} General Takaful products for companies provide companies with cover mainly for property,
perscnal accident and marine cargo for unpredictable events. General Takaful solutions for
individuals protect the individuals and their families against unfortunate events with respect to
the planholder’s home property, incidences during travel and personal accident.

Segment performance is evaluated based on segment profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured
differently from profit or foss in the financial statements, Zakat and income tax are managed for the
Company as a whole and are not allocated to individual operating segments,

No inter-segment fransaclions occurred among the operating segments during the year. If any transaction
were 10 occur, transfer prices between operating segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense and results will then include those
transfers among operating segments which will then be eliminated at the level of financial statements of
the Company.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chicf operating decision-maker, who is responsibie for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chiel executive officer
that makes strategic decisions.

QOperating segments do not include sharchelders’ operations of the Company. Investment income earned
from murabaha deposits and sukuks is the only revenue generating activity. Certain direct operating
expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis. The surplus
from the takaful operations is atlocated to this segment on an appropriate basis.

For financial reporting purposes, Individual Family Takaful and Group Family Takaful segments are
reported together as “Family Takaful”,

The Company carries out its activities entirely in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, hence reporting is
provided by business segments only.

Statutory reserve

[n accordance with the bye-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income each year to the legal
reserve until it has built up a reserve egual to the issued share capital. The reserve is not available for
distribution.

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair
values. The fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using
commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

FFor financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value
of a similar financial assets or where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are
determined using a variety of vaiuation techniques. The inputs of this models is taken from observable
market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values,

Reserve for takaful activities

Takaful contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an ingured event
could cause an insurer to make significant additional payments in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack
commercial substance, at the inception of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance contracts until all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire. Contracts can be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if
insurance risk becomes significant, Any contracts not considered 1o be insurance contracts under IFRS are
classified as investment contracts.

|'.? TR T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

This reserves perlains to individual family contracts which insure human life events such as death over a long
period of time. Insurance premiums are recognised directly as liabilities. These liabilities are increased/
decreased by change in the unit prices as in the case of unit-linked contracts and are decreased by planholder
charges and surrenders and maturities, At each reporting date, such reserve is calculated on the basis of an
actuarial valuation method by an independent appointed actuary through the use of curremt unit fund price
method.

For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the underlying investments. The investment component of these
insurance contracts are designated as ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’. The fair value changes of insurance
liabilities is taken to the statement of comprehensive income to match the fair value changes in underlying
investments in the statement of comprehensive income,

Product classification

Takaful contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant 1akaful
risk from another party (the plan/ policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the planholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the planholders,

Once a contract has been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of
its lifetime, even if the takafid risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expired.

In individual family segment, investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risks with no
significant takaful risk.

Surrenders and maturities

Surrenders refer to the partial or full termination of the individual family takaful contract. Surrenders are
accounted for on the basis of notifications received and are charged to statement of income in the period
in which they are notified. Maturities refers Lo the amount given to the insured towards the end of the
maturity period of the individual family takaful contract, Surrenders and maturities are calculated based
on the terms and conditions of the respective takaful contracts,

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Cash flow statement

The Company’s main cash flows are from insurance operations which are classified as cash flow from
operating activities. Cash flows generated from investing and financing activities are classified
accordingly.

Surplus distribution

The Company is required to distribute 10% of the net surplus from takaful operations to policyholders and the
remaining 90% to the sharcholders of the Company in accordance with the Insurance Law and Implementation
Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Moenetary Authority (“SAMA™).




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4 INVESTMENTS

a) Investments comprise available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments. An analysis of investments is
set out below:

31 December 2018

SAR’000
Takaful Shareholders’

Operations Operations
Available-for-sale invesiments - Quoted
investment in Amanah Mutual Funds - 4 (¢} is2.115 -
Held-to-maturity investments -~ Unguoted
General Authority of Civil Aviation Sukuk (GACA < ) - 50,580
The National Industrialization Company Sukuk {TASNEE) - 50,230
Bank AlBilad Sukuk - 20,089

- 120,899

Total investments 352,115 120,899

31 December 2017
SAR'O00

Takafil Shareholders’

Operations Operations
Available-for-sale investments — Quoted
Investment in Amanah Mutual Funds ~ 4 (¢} 381,037 -
Held-to-maturity invesimenis — Unquoted
Saudi Hollandi Bank Sukuk (SHB-1V) - 5,010
General Autherity of Civil Aviation Sukuk (GACA - 1) - 50,576
The National Industrialization Company Sukuk (TASNEE) - 50,177
The Power and Water Ulility Company for Jubail and Yanbu Sukuk
(MARAFIQ) - 12,033
Bank AlBilad Sukuk - 20,068

- 137,864

Total investments 381,037 137,864
b) Held-to-maturity financial assets

The analysis of held-to-maturity invesiments by counter-party is as follows:

2018 2017

SAR’060 SAR'000
Government and quasi government 56,580 30,576
Banks and other financial institutions 26,089 25,078
Corporate 58,230 62210
126,899 137,864

Page L



SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
b) Held-to-maturity financial assets (continued)

The analysis of held-lo-maturity investments by class of assets is as follows:

2018 2017
SAR'000 SAR 000
Fixed-rate securities 50,580 50,576
Floating-rate securities 70,319 87,288
120,899 137,864
The movements in investments held to maturity are as follows:
2018 2617
SAR'000 SAR 000
Balance at the beginning of the year 137,864 188,095
Matured during the year (16,965) {50,231
Balance at the end of the year 120,899 137,864
All the held-to-maturity investments are un-quoted as well as domestic in nature.
The maturity profile of held-to-maturity investments is as follows:
Maturity profile Muaturity date
~ General Authority of Civil Aviation Sukuk (GACA - 1) 18 January 2022
- The National Industrialization Company Sukuk (TASNEE) 21 May 2019
- Bank AlBilad Sukuk 30 August 2021

The average commission rate on held-to-imaturity investments at 31 December 2018 is 3.30 % per annum

(2017: 3.10 % per annum},

The fair value of held-to-maturity investments as at 31 December 2018 is SAR 120.90 million (
SAR 137.86 million),

<) Available- for-sale financial assets

Available- for-sale investiments conmiprise investments in the following mutual funds:

31 December 2017:

Name of the fund 2008 2007
SAR000 SAR'000
Multi-Assets Balanced Fund 203,578 215,650
Multi-Assets Defensive Fund 47,818 55,947
Multi-Assets Growth Fund 81,820 86,126
Saudi Riyal Trading Fund 18,962 23,314
352,115 381,037

Available-for-sale investments in takaful operations represent investments in units of mutual
HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited, being a related party of the Company.

funds managed by




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

¢} Available- for-sale financial assets {continued)

The movements in the available-for-sale investments held to cover unit-linked liabilities were a5 follows:

2018 2007
SAR'B0G SAR 06
Balance as at the beginning of the year 381,037 353,740
Purchased during the year 77,971 96,953
Sold during the year (110,957) {94,661)
348,051 356,032
Net change in fair values of investments 4,064 25,005
Balance as at the end of the year 352,115 381,037
d) Credit guality of total investments
2018 2047
SAR'00G SARGON
Saudi sovercign debi 50,580 50,576
Investment grade 20,089 25,078
Unrated 462,345 443,247
Total 473,014 518,901

Investments classified under investment grade above comprise of credit exposures equivalent to A to A- ratings
under Standard and Poor's and Moody’s ratings methodology, The uarated investments comprise of TASNEE
Sukuk, and available-for-sale investments in mutual funds,

The Company uses the following hierarchy methods for determining and disclosing the fair value of investments al
the reporting period end:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
Habilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable
for the asset or liabilily, either directly (i.e. as prices} or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The Company’s available-for-sale and held to maturity investments are classified under Level | and Level 3
hierarchy respectively,
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5 CONTRIBUTIONS AND RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES, NET
2018 2007
SAR'0GE SAR D0
Policyholders 7,992 8,329
Reinsurers 7,220 2,467
Due from a shareholder {The Saudi British Bank) 13 5,771
15,225 16,567
Provision for impairment (2,575) (2,071)
12,650 14,456
(a) Movement in the provision for impairment is as follows:
2018 2017
SARG00 SAR 000
At the beginning of the year 2,01 1,019
Provision during the year 504 1,052
At the end of the year 2,575 2,071

(b} As at 31 December, the ageing of net receivable balances is as follows:
Past due but not impaired

Neither past

due nor 181 fo 365 More than

Total impaired 21 to 180 days days 3635 days

SAR000 SAR* 000 SAR'000 SAR900 SAR000

31 December 2018 12,650 10,581 1,388 487 194
31 December 2017 14,496 9,462 2,489 2,445 100

The Company classifies balances as ‘past due and impaired’ on a case-to-case basis. An impairment adjustinient is
recorded in the statement of income. It is not the practice of the Company to obtain collateral over receivables.
Balances, which are neither past due nor impaired, include a balance due from The Saudi British Bank, a
sharehoider of the Company amounting to Nil (2017: SAR 4.87 million), which has a sound credit rating issued by
external rating agencies. Past due but not impaired balances include SAR 0.01 million (2017; SAR 1.59 million)
from The Saudi British Bank. Unimpaired receivable balances are expectled, on the basis of past experience, to be
fully recoverable.

The Company only enters into takaful and retakaful contracts with recognized, creditworthy third parties. it is the
Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivables are monitored on an engoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad
debts.

The five largest customers account for 49% (December 31, 2017: 69%) of the premiums receivable as at December
31,2018,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6 PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS
2018
SAR'G00
Takaful Shareholders’
Operations Operations Total
Due from & related party 440 - 440
Prepayments and others 403 JR9 792
843 389 1,232
2017
SAR 000
Takaful Shareholders’
Operations Operations Total
Due from a related party 860 - 860
Prepayments and others 603 273 &78
1,463 275 1,738
7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018
SAR’000
Takaful Shareholders’
Operations Operations Total
Bank balances 19,011 2,858 21,869
Murabaha deposits 30,696 191,454 222,150
49,707 194,312 244,019
2017
SAR 000
Takatul Shareholders’
Operations Operations Tatal
Bank balances 18,706 7,062 25,768
Murabaha deposits 15,040 198,291 213,331
33,746 205,353 239,099

Bank balances are maintained only with The Saudi British Bank, a shareholder of the Company. Further, no
murabaha deposits are held with The Saudi British Bank as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,

Both bank balances and murabaha deposits are placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard
and Poor's and Moody’s ratings methodology.

Murabaha deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Company. The average variable commission rate on murabaha deposits at 31 December
2018 is 2.44 % per annum (2017: 1.55 % per annum).

8 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

in accordance with Article 58 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company has deposited
10 percent of its share capital, amounting to SAR 34 million (2017: SAR 34 million) in a bank designated by
SAMA. The statutory deposit is maintained with The Saudi British Bank and can be withdrawn only with the
consenl of SAMA,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

9 MOVEMENT IN RESERVE FOR TAKAFUL ACTIVITIES, NET UNEARNED CONTRIBUTION,
DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COST AND UNEARNED RETAKAFUL COMMISSION

a) Moventent in reserve for takaful activities

2018 2017
SAR'G00 SAR 006
Balance as at the beginning of the ycar 381,037 353,740
Changes in reserve during (he year (17,983) 23,233
Planholder charges (15,003) {20,941)
Net change in lair valug of investments 4,064 25,005
Balance as at the end of the year 352,118 381,037
‘The reserve for takalul activities represents the unit linked 1akaful plan reserve.
b) Movement in net unearned contribution
2018
Gross Retakaful share Net
SAR000 SARG00 SAR'O00
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14,389 (10,802} 3,587
Contribution written during the ycar 61,995 (41,423) 20,572
Contribution earned during the year (66,819) 45,256 (21,563)
Balance as at the end of the year 9,565 (6,969 2,596
2017
{sross Retakafid share Net
SARGO0 SAR GO0 SARGOG
Balance as al the beginning of the year 20,574 (13,976) 6,598
Contribution written during the year 78,131 (52,362) 25,764
Conltribution carned during the ycar {84,316) 55,536 (28,780)
Balance as at the end ol the year 14,389 {10,802) 3,587
¢} Movement in deferred policy acquisition costs and unearned retakaful commission
2018
Gross Refakaful share Net
SAR000 SAR'00G SAR'000
Balance as at the beginning of the year 824 {2,355} (1,731)
Incurred during the year 1,019 (2,290) (1271
Amortised during the year (824) 2,585 1,731
Balance as at the end of the year 1,019 (2,290) (L271)
2017
Gross Retakafu! share Ner
SAR 000 SAR 000 SAR 00
Balance as al the beginning of the year 1,085 {2,794) {1,709
Incurred during the ycar 824 {2,5535) {1,731}
Amorlised during the year {1,085} 2,794 1,709
Balance as al the end of the year 324 (2,5535) (1,731}

Faae
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9 MOVEMENT IN RESERVE FOR TAKAFUL ACTIVITIES, NET UNEARNED CONTRIBUTION,
DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COST AND UNEARNED RETAKAFUL COMMISSION
(CONTINUED)

) Non-unit reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has recorded a non-unit reserve of SAR 5.6 million (2017: SAR 4.3
million) pertaining to individual family segment, The reserve is caleulated based on the present value of future assumed cxpenses
less the present value of Tulure income arising from charges on all individual family policies.

e} Usnexpired risk reserve

‘Fhis reserve comprises of an expense everrun reserve of SAR 0.57 wmillion (2017: SAR 2.87 million) and premium deficiency
reserve of SAR 2.42 million 2017: SAR 2,66 million) pertaining Lo group family and pencral takalul scgments respectively.

10 PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The amounts recognized in the staternent of financial position and movement in the obligation during the year based
on its present value are as follows:

2018 2017
SAR'000 SAR 000
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 7,091 7,830
Current service cost 885 37
Benefits paid (3,259) (151)
Transfer in 161 -
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - Unrecognized actuarial loss 38 175
Defined benefit obligation at the closing of the year 4,916 7,691
10.1 Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount
Actuarial assumptions Rate
- Discount rate 3%
- Salary growth rate 3%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with the stalistics and
experience in the region,

10.2 Sensitivity of actuarial assumptions

SAR000
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumplion  assumption assumplion
Discount rate | % 4,430 5,492
Salary growth increase 1 % 5,486 4,426
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i1 CLAIMS

) Net claims incurred

Claims paid
Re-takaful share of claims paid

Net claims paid
Changes in outstanding claims and IBNR
Changes in re-takaful share of outstanding claims and IBNR

Net claims incurred

Claims paid
Re-takaful share of claims paid

Net claims paid
Changes in culstanding claims and IBNR
Changes in re-takaful share of cutstanding claims and IBNR

Net claims incurred

b) Outstanding claims

Family Takaful outstanding claims
- Quistanding claim reserves
- Incurred but not reported reserve and other reserves

General Takaful outstanding claims
- Quistanding claim reserves
- Incurred but not reported reserve and other reserves

‘FTotal outstanding claims

Family Takaful outstanding claims
- Ouistanding claim reserves
- Incurred but not reported reserve and other reserves

General Takaful outstanding claims
- Outstanding claim reserves

- Incurred but not reported reserve and other reserves

Total outstanding ¢laims

For the vear ended 31 December 2018

SAR'000

Family
Takaful

42,021
(32,117

9,904
(20,034)
14,922

4,792

SAR 000 SAR’G00
Generul
Takafiel Total

3,317 45,338
(2,771) (34,888)
546 10,450
7,691 (12,343)
(6,570) 8,352
1,667 6,459

For the year ended 31 December 2017

SAR'000 SARGO0 SARO00
Family General
Takaful Takaful Toial
40,778 4,739 45,517
(29,936} 3,118 (33,054}
10,842 1,621 12,463
12,146 {919) 11,227
{9,986} 267 (9,719)
13,002 969 13,971
2018
Retakaful
Gross share Net
SAR000 SAR'"OO SAR000
18,988 (14,033) 4,955
20,337 {15,679) 4,658
27,302 (25,629} 1,673
4,559 (2,389) 2,170
71,186 (87,730} 13,456
20i7
Retakaful
Gross share Neit
SAR 000 SAR'G00 SAR'000
35,717 (27,027 8,690
23,642 (17,607) 6,035
19,392 (18,521) 871
4,778 (2.927) 1,851
83,529 (66,082) 17,447




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudt Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

I CLAIMS (continued)
c) Credit qualify of retakaful share of outstanding claims
2018 247
SAR'000 SAR M0
Investment grade 57,730 66,082

Investment grade above comprise of credit exposures equivalent to A+ to BBB ratings under Standard & Poor's
ratings methodology.

12 ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2018
SAR000
Takaful
Operations Sharecholders Total
Accounts payable and accruals 16,051 1,414 17,465
e to related parties 1,700 - 1,760
Payable 10 agents 213 - 213
17,964 1,414 19,378
2017
SAR (00
Takaful
Operations Sharcholders Total
Accounts payable and accruals 15,649 1,493 17,142
Due to related parties 1,401 - 1,401
Payable to agents 167 - 167
17,217 1,493 18,710

13 SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized, {ssued and fully paid up share capital of the Company consists of 34 million ordinary shares of
SAR 10 each. On 23 November 2017, HSBC Asia Holdings B.V and related group entities sold their shareholding
of 32.5% in SABB Takaful Company to The Saudi British Bank. Consequently, SABB Takaful Company has
become a subsidiary of The Saudi British Bank. The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December
2018 and 3] December 2017 is as follows:

As at 31 December 2018

Sharcholders Sharcholding SAR'008

The Saudi British Bank 65.00% 221,000

Other 35.00% 119,000
100.06% 340,000

Asat 31 December 2017

Sharchotders Sharcholding SAR'000
The Saudi British Bank 65.00% 221,000
Other 35.00% 119,000
100.00% 340,000
14 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance with Article 70 (2g) of the [nsurance
Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company allocates 20% of its net income each year to the statutory
reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital. The legal reserve is not available for distribution to
sharcholders until liquidation of the Company.
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15 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
a) Zakat and income tax - net charge for the year
2018 2017
SARG00 SAR'GO0
Provision for zakat 6,017 4,445
Provision for tax 17 (30
6,034 4,414
b} Zakat charge for the year
The provision for zakat charge relating (o Saudi shareholders is based on the following:
2018 2007
SAR'B0D SAR 000
Bquity 351,302 361,201
Opening allowances and other adjustments 9,162 8,049
Boek valuc of fong term assets (35,681} (37,560)
324,783 331,690
Saudi shareholders® share @ 74% (2017; 54.5%) 240,339 180,771
Saudi sharcholders’ sharc of adjusted profit/(loss) for the year KF1] (2,691)
Saudi shareholders® share of the zakat base 240,680 178,080
Zakat charge for the year @ 2.5% 6,017 4,452

The differences belween the financial and zakatable results are mainly due to provisions, which are not allowed in the
calculation of adjusted profit,

¢} Movements in zakat provision

The movement in the zakat provision for the year was as foliows:

2018 2007

SAR'080 SAR 060
Al the beginning of the year 4,452 4,634
Charge during the year 6,017 4,452
Prior year adjustment - (7)
Payments during the year (4,452) {4,627)
At the end of the year 6,017 4,452
d) Income tax charge for the year

Income tax charge for the current year is calculated al 20% of the adjusted taxable income en the portion of equity owned
by the foreign shareholders. The movement in the lax provision for the year was as follows:

2018 2017
SAR GO0 SAR'GO0
Al the beginning of the year - 1,067
Charge during the year 17 -
Prior year adjustment - (31)
Payments during the year - (1036)

At the end of the year 17 -
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15 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (CONTINULED)
€) Status of assessments

During the quarter ended 31 March 2013, the General Authority of Zakat & Tax (GAZT) issued the final 1ax certificates
for the years from 2008 1o 2010. However, the GAZT had filed an appeal in the Higher Appellale Forum against the
ruling of Preliminary Zakat and Tax Appeal Committce which was in Company’s favour. The appeal was regarding the
matter of deducting the statutory deposit from zakat base for the years {2008-2010). During the quarter ended 31 March
20106, the said appeal was decided in Company’s favour. Further, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the GAZT
also started its review for the years from 2011 to 20135,

On 27 November 2018, GAZT has issued the final lax/zakat assessments for the years ended 31 December 2011 to 2014,
In conneetion with the above assessments of GAZT for the year 2011 to 2014, the Company requested GAZT to provide
the details of the tax/zakat assessments in order Lo provide the Cempany’s point of view on GAZT's action. Accordingly,
the GAZT provided the details of tax/zakat and withholding tax assessments for the years ended 31 December 2011 to
2014 including the tax/zakat assessment for the year 2015 and withholding tax assessment for the years 2011 to 2015,
During the quarter ended 31 December 2018, the Company had filed an appeal against the above mentioned assessments.
The management believes that the Company is in a strong position in the appeat filed as mainly it relates to matters
already decided in Company’s favour in earlier appeals relating to previous assessments (2007-2010).

16 SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION PAYABLE

2018 2017
SAR'060 SAR'Q00
Opening surplus distribution payable as at January | 6,593 0,144
Total income attvibuted to the insurance operations during the year - 496
Surplus paid to policy holders - (47
Closing surplus distribution payable as at December 31 6,593 6,593

17 NET CONTREBUTION EARNED AND PLANHOLDER CHARGES
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Family General

Takaful Takafui Total
SAR'000 SAR’000 SAR000
Cross written coniribution 119,544 20,422 139,966
Planholder charges 15,063 - 15,063
Re-takaful contribution ceded (26,228) (16,183} (42,411}
Changes in gross unearned contributions 185 4,639 4,824
Changes in retakaful share of uncarned contributions (10%) (3,732} (3,833)
Net contribution earned and planholder charges 108,403 5,146 113,549

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Family General
Takaful Takaful Total
SAR 000 SAR 000 SAR Q00
Gross written coniribution 148,386 26,698 175,084
Planholder charges 20,941 - 20,941
Re-takaful contribution ceded (31,431 (21,858) {53,29%)
Changes in gross unearned contribufions 5,216 969 6,185

Changes in retakaful share of unearned contributions (2,388) (786) (3,174)

Net contribution earned and planholder charges 140,718 5,023 145,741
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18 SURRENDERS AND MATURITIES

SAR’000
2018 2017
Surrenders 60,207 51,897
Maturities 35,7147 21,823
95,954 73,720
19 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2018
SAR’000
Takaful Shareholders’ Total
Operations Operations
Employee costs 26,499 - 26,499
I'T maintenance costs 2,804 610 3,474
Legal and professional charges 5,172 - 5,172
Rent expenses 512 - 512
Travel expenses 173 - 173
Directors’ fees and other expenses - 1,149 1,149
Other 4,609 1,179 5,788
39,829 2,938 42,767
2017
SAR'000
Takafid Operations  Shareholders’ Total
Operations
Employee costs 24,277 - 24277
IT maintenance costs 3,823 - 3,823
Legal and professicnal charges 3,086 501 3,587
Rent expenses 570 - 570
Travel expenses 70 - 70
Directors’ fees and other expenses - 218 918
Other 5,191 1,459 6,650
37.017 2,878 39,895
20 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE
2018 2017
The basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share are calculaled as follows:
Net prefit/ (loss) for the year (SAR™000) 1,056 (5,483)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(MNumber in thousands) 34,000 34,000
Earnings/ {loss) per share (SAR) 0.63 (0.16)
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21 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement {s based on the presumption that
the transaction takes place cither:

+ in the accessible principal market for the asset or Hability, or

+« intlhe absence of a principal market, in the most advantages accessibie market for the asset or Hability
The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, receivables from related parties, loans (o related parties,

trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, variable rate loans and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: quoled prices in active markets for the same or identical instrument that an entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on ebservable market data.

a) Carrying amounts and fair valuc

The following table shows the carrving amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. it does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a
reasonable approximation to fair value.

31 December 2018 Fatr value
Carrying
SAR*000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assetls measured at fair value
- Available for sale financial assels 352,115 352,115 - - 352,115

Financial assets not measured at fair value

- leld-to-maturity financial assets 120,899 - - 120,899 120,899
- Cash and cash cguivalents 244,019 - - 244,019 244,019
364,918 - - 364,918 364,918

Financial fiabilitics measured at fair value
thorough statement of income

- Reserve for takaful activities - 352,115 - - 352,115
- 352,115 - - 352,115
3! December 2017 Fair value
Carrying
SAR’000 value Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
- Available for sale financial assets 381,037 381,037 - - 381,037

Financial assets not measured at fair value

- Held-lo-maturity financial assets 137,864 - - 137,864 137,864
- Cash and cash equivalents 239,099 - - 239,099 239,099
376,963 - - 376,963 376,963

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
thorough statement of income
- Reserve for takaful activities - 181,037 - - 381,037

- 381,037 - - 381,037
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22 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consgistent with the Company’s internal reporting process, business segments have been approved by management in
respect of the Company’s activities. The Company’s gross written contribution, net written contribution and
placholder charges, net contributions camed and planholder charges, fees and commission income, net claims
incurred, surrenders and maturities, policy acquisition costs and other related costs, underwriting surplus, investment
incomme, peneral and administrative expenses, net surplus/ (deficit), surplus/ (loss) from takaful operations, net profit,
purchase of intangible assets and motor vehicle, amortisation, depreciation, intangible assets, available for sale
investments, contribution receivables - net, retakaful share of outstanding claims and unearned contributions, deferred
policy acquisition costs, total assets, reserve for takaful activities, gross unearned contributions and commission
income, gross outstanding claims and total liabilities, by business segment, are stated below.

Segment assets do not include retakaful balances receivable, prepayments and other receivables, due from
shareholders and cash and cash equivalents. Accordingly they arve included in unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities do not include provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits, surplus distribution payable,
retakaful balances payable, payables, accruals and others and due to shareholders, Accordingly they are included in
unaliocated liabitities.

Individual
Family Group Family
Shareholders’ (Protection {Protection & General
Operations & Savings) Savings} Talhaful Total
SAR’000 SAR'G00 SAR000 SAR'G00 SAR DGO

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Gross contribulions writlen - 77,971 41,573 20,422 139,966
Net contributions wrilten - 91,986 16,333 4,239 112,558
Net contributions carned - 91,986 16,417 5,146 113,549
Fees and commission income - 78 206 5,492 5,836
Total revenuc - 92,064 16,683 10,638 119,385
Net elaims and other benefits incurred “ (95,901 (4,845) (1,667) (102,413
Changes in reserve for takalul activities - 17,983 - - 17,983
Changes in non-unit reserve - (1,268) - - {1,268)
Changes in unexpired risk reserve - - 2,302 239 2,541
Policy acquisition costs - (933) {469} (2,148) {3,552)
Net underwriting income for the year - 11,943 13.671 7.062 32,676
General and adminisirative expenses (2,938) (14,689) {12,578} {12,562} (42,767
Rebate income “ ,598 - - 1,598
Income from deposits 4,601 286 220 208 5,312
lncome from sukuk 4,237 - - - 4,237
Total income f(loss) Tor the year 5,900 (862) 1,313 (5,295) 1,056
Purchase of intangibles 741 - - - 741
Amwortisation 610 - - - 610
Depreciation 83 - - - 83

EETI 37
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22 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Individual
amily Group Family
Sharcholders’ tProtection {Protection & Creneral
Operations & Savings) Savings) Takaful Total
SAR GO0 SAR GO0 SAR GO0 SAR (N SAR GO
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Gross contributions wrillen - 96,953 51,433 26,698 175,084
Net contributions writlen - 116,961 20,629 4,840 142,730
Net contributions carned . 116,961 23,757 5,023 145,74}
Fees and commission income - 426 184 5,133 5,743
Total revenue - 117,387 23,041 10,156 151,484
Net claims and other benefis incurred - {75,688} {11,034) {969} (87,691)
Changes in reserve for takaful activities - {23,233} - - (23,233
Changes in non-unit reserve - (4,311) - - (4,311)
Changes in unexpired risk rescrve - - (2,868) (2,663) {5,331)
Policy acquisition cosls - (2,214} (1,134) (2,290} (5,638)
Net underwriting income lor the year - 11,94} 8,905 4,234 25,080
CGeneral and administralive expenscs {2.878) {13,702) {12,135) {11,180) (39,895)
Rebate income . 1,340 - - 1,340
Income from deposits 2,717 184 54 - 2,955
Income from sukuk 5,035 - - - 5,035
Total income loss} for the year 4,874 (23 {3,176) {6,946) {5,485)
Purchase of intangibles 1,104 - - - 1,104
Purchase of motor vehicle 201 201
Proceeds from sale of motor vehicle 19 19
Amortisation 499 499
Depreciation 80 - - - 80
31 December 2018
Intangible assets 1,859 - . - 1,859
Iixed assels 146 - - - 146
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 194,312 22,402 14,314 12,991 244,019
Contributions and retakalul receivables, net - - 8,990 3,660 12.650
Retakaful share of unearned contributions - - 485 6,484 6,969
Retakalul share of outstanding claims - 226 29,486 28,018 57,730
Delerred policy acquisilion cosls - - 47 972 1.019
Available-for-salc financial assets - 352,118 - - 352,115
Held-to-maturity financial assets 120,899 - - - 120,899
Statutory deposit 34,000 - - - 34,000
Unallocated assets - - - - 6,746
Total assets 836,147
Liabilities
Retakaful balances payable - 47 (408) 5,817 5,880
Linearned contributions - - 1,431 8,134 9,568
Unearned retakaful commission - - - 2,299 2,290
Gross outstanding claims - 1,285 38,040 31,861 71,186
Unexpired risk reserve - - 566 2,425 2,99
Non-unil reserve - 5,579 - - 5,579
Provision for employees’ end-of-service
benelits - 1,642 1,437 1,837 4,916
Reserve lor takaful aclivitics - 352,118 - - 382,118
Linallocated liabilitics - - - - 35,514
Total liabilities 490,036

-
s
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22 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31 December 2017 (Audited)
Intangibie agsets
Fixed assels

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

Contributions and retakaful receivables, net
Retakaful share of unearned contributions
Retakaful share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets

Statutory deposit

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Retakaful balances payabie
Gross uncarned contributions
Unearned commission income
Gross outstanding claims
Unexpired risk reserve
Non-unit reserve

Provision for emplioyees' end-of-service benefits

Reserve for takaful activities
Linallocated liabilitics

Total liabilities

All of the Company's operating assets and principal activities are located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

Individual Group
Family Family
Shareholders' (Protection  (Protection General
Operations & Savings) & Savings) Takafid
SAR 000 SAR'000 SAR'GO0 SAR GO
1,728 - - -
229 - - -

205,353 18,844 12,876 2,026
- - 2,210 12,286
- - 587 10,215
- 438 44,196 21,448
- - 61 763

- 381,037 - -

137,864 - - -

34,000 - - -
- 356 212 8,006
- 1,617 12,712
- - - 2,555
- 2,082 57,278 24169
- - 2,868 2,663

- 4,311 - -
- 2,207 2,088 2,796

- 381,037 - -

Total
SAR 006

1,728
229

239,009
14,496
10,802
66,082

824

381,037

137,864
34,000

6,495

890,699

8,574
14,389
2,555
83,529
5531
4,311
7,091
381,037
32,555

539,572

I "
Puanw
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23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major sharcholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and
companies of which they are principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management
and Board of Directors.

a) Transactions with related parties
Details of significant transactions carried out during the year with related parties are as follows:
2018 2017
SAR(00 SAR 000

The Saudi British Bank
(a shareholder of the Company)
Contributions 39,254 47,531
Claims paid 31,964 27,532
Other expenses

- [T maintenance cost and related expenses 2,695 3,664

- Overheads - 189
[nvestment income on murabaha deposits 896 167
Other entities controlled, jointly controlied or significantly
influenced by related partics
Policy acquisition costs paid 3,581 3,746
HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited - 1BSA
Conttibutions 149 820
Rebate on unit-linked investments 1,598 1,340

‘Other expenses’ include costs for various services under a management agreement between The Saudi British Bank
and the Company. As per the agreement, The Saudi British Bank provides operational services to the Company
including use of fixed assets and IT infrastructure at a consideration mutually agreed between the parties.

b Balances with related parties

Details of the receivables from and payables to related parties at the reporting date are as follows:

2018 2017

Nature Notcs Amounts in ‘000
HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited
Available-for-szle financial assets * Asset 4(c) 352,115 381,037
Rebate on unit-linked financial assets Asset 6 440 860
Contribution receivable - gross Asset 5 - 695
The Saudi British Bank
Contribution receivable - gross Asset 3 13 5,771
Bank balances Asset 7 21,869 25,768
Statutory deposit Asset 8 34,000 34,000
Gross outstanding claims Liability 11(b) 26,560 37,688
Other expenses under service level agreement Liability 12 776 358
Profit commission payable Liability 12 - 176
SABB Insurance Agency Limited
Commission payable Liability 12 924 867

* policyholders’ asset under management

Cuistanding balances at the reporting date are unsecured. Settlement will take place in cash. No major provision
for impairment was made at the reporting date. This assessment is undertaken at the reporting date through
examining the financial position of the related parties, the market in which the related parties operate and other
factors.
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23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(] Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company include all directors, executive and non-executive, and senior
management. The surnmary of compensation of key management personnel for the year is as foliows:

2018 2017
SAR 600 SAR 000
Yakaful Shareholders’ Takafid Sharchaolders’
Operations Operations Operations Operations
Salaries and other benefits (including
end-of-service benefits) 3917 - 4,171 -
Directors’ fees and other expenses - 926 - 797
Number of key management personnel 5 8 5 10
) Available- for-sale financial assets pertaining to unit-linked policies

Available-for-sale financial assets pertaining to unit-linked policies as at 31 December 2018 amounting to
SAR 352.12 million (2017: SAR 381.04 million) comprise investments in units of mutual funds managed by
HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited, being a related party of the Company.




SABB Takaful Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

24 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Financial position

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents

Comtributions and retakalul receivables, net
Retakal share of unearned contributions
Retakalui share of outsianding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs

Due  from/ (o)  sharcholders’/  takalul
aperalions

Available-for-sale Minancial asscts

I leld-ta-maturity Minanciat assels

Prepaid expenses and other asscs

Fixed assets

Intangible asscis

Slatutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

FOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accrued and other labilities
Proviston {or xakal and income tax
Retakalul balances payable
Unearned contributions

Unecamed relakalul comniission
Ciross outstanding claims

Unexpired risk reserve

Non-umit reserve

Provision  for employees’  end-ol-service
benelits

Surplus distribution payable

Reserve for lakaful activities
Acerued income on statutory deposit

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Takaful operations’ surplus

TOFAL LIABILITIES AND TAKAFUL
OPERATIONS' SURPLUS

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Share capital
Legal reserve

Remeasurements  of  relivement  benglit
obligations

Accumulated losses

TOTAL LEABILITIES, TAKAFUL
OPERATIONS' SURPLUS AND

SHAREHOQLDERS' EQUITY

SAR 000
2018 2017
Takahul Sharcholders’ Takatul Sharcholders’

Operations Opcrations Total Operations Operations Total
49,707 194,312 244,019 33,746 205,353 239,099
12,650 - 12,650 14,496 - 14,496

6,969 6.969 10,802 - 10,802
87,730 - 57,730 66,082 - 66,082
1,019 - 1,019 824 - 824
(2,167} 2,167 - 22,202 {22,202) -
352,115 - 352,115 381,037 - 381,037
- 120,899 120,899 - 137,864 137,864
8§43 389 §232 1,463 275 1,738
- 146 146 - 229 229
- 1,859 1,859 - 1,728 1,728
- 34,000 34,000 - 34,000 34,000
- 3.509 3569 - 2,860 2,800
478,866 357,281 836,147 530,632 360,047 894,699
17,964 1414 19,378 17,217 1,493 18,710
B 6,034 6,034 - 4,452 4,452
5,880 - 5,880 8,574 - 8,574
9,565 - 9,565 14,389 - 14,389
2,290 - 2,290 2,553 - 2,555
71,186 - 71,186 §3,529 - 83,329
2,991 - 2,991 553 - 5,531
5,579 - 5,579 4,311 - 4.3H
4916 - 4,416 7,091 - 7,001
6,593 - 6,593 6,593 ~ 6,503
352,15 - 382,118 381,037 - 381,037
- 3,504 3,509 - 2,800 2,800
479,079 1,957 490,636 530,827 8,745 539,572
479079 16,957 490,036 530,827 8,745 539572
- 344,000 340,000 - 340,000 340,000
- 14,788 14,788 - 14,577 14,577
(213) - (213} {(175) - (175)
B {8.464) (8,464) - (3.275) {3,275)
213 346,324 346,111 {173} 351,302 351,127
357,281 836,147 530,652 360,047 890,699

478 866
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24, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

Statement of income

SAR QDG
2018 07
Takaful Sharcholders’ Takalu! Sharehodders’
Operations Cperations Total Operations (peralions Totat
REVENUES
Gross contributions written
- Faunily Takaful $19,544 - 139,844 148,386 - 148 386
- Ciengral Takafut 0,422 - 20,422 26,695 - 26,698
(Gross contributions writien 139,966 - 139,266 175 084 - 175,084
Retakalul contribution ceded
- Loizal retakaful contrilateon ceded {9,201) - (9,200) {7.656) - (7.650)
N Foreign retakalul canuribution coded (33.210) - (33,210 {45.639) . {45,639)
Flanholder charges 15,003 . 15,003 20941 - 20,941
N¢t contribudions written 112,558 - i12,558 142,730 - 142,730
Changes in pross unearned contribwions 4,824 - 4,824 6,185 - 6,145
Changes in retakalul share of unearned contributions {3,833) - {3,833) {3.174) - {3,174}
Net contributions carncd 113,549 - 113,549 145,74} . 145,741
Fees and commission income 5,834 - 5,836 5,743 . 5,743
Tatal revenue 119,385 - 119,385 151,484 - 151,484
UNDERWRITING COSTS ANIY EXPENSLES
Ciross elaims paid (45,338) - (45,338 (45,51 B (45,517)
Retakaful share of claims paid 34,888 - 34,588 33034 - 33,054
Surrenders and maturives {95,954) - {98,954% {73,720 - (73,720)
Net elains and other benefits paid {106,404 - {1416,404) {B5,183) - [LUREXD]
Changes in outsianding claims, net 2,933 - 2,933 (1,034) - (1,034)
Changes in TNR, net i, 058 - 1,058 (474) - (474)
Net claims and other benefits incurred (102,433) - (102,413} (87,691} - (87.691)
Changes in reserve for takalul activities 17,983 - 17,983 (23,233 - {23,233)
Changes i non-unil reserve {1,208) - {1.268) {1,311} - {4,310
Changes in unexpired risk reserve 2,541 - 2,541 {5,531) - {55310
Policy acquisilion costs {3,552) {3,552} {5,038} - (5,638)
Total underwriting costs and expenses (86,709) - {56,709} (E20,404} - (126,404
Net underwriting income 32,676 - 32,676 25,080 - 25,080
OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSESY INCOME
General and administrative expenses (39,819) (2,938} {42,767 (3017 (2878) {39,895)
Rebate tncatme 1,598 - 1,598 1,340 - 1,340
Income from deposils 71l 4,601 53i2 238 2707 2,955
Inconte Mrom sukuek - 4,23% 4,237 - 5,035 5035
TOTAL OTHER OQPERATING EXPENSES, NET (37,5200 5,900 (3t,0200 {35440 4,874 (30,565)
Total income {loss) for the year {4.840) 8,9a0 1,056 (10,359} 4,871 {5.483)
Sharehalders” absorplion of deficitf {surplus teansforeed
to sharchobders) fram takaful nperations

4,844 (4,844) - 19,359 {10,359

Net result after sharchelders’ absorption of deficit/
transfer of surplus to sharcholders - 1,056 1,056 - {5,485} (5,485)
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24, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

Statement of comprehensive inconie

SAR 000

2018 2017

Takaful Sharcholders’ Takaflui Sharchotders’
Operations Operations Folal Operalions Operalions Total

Net vesult after sharcholders’ absorption of
deficit/ transfer of surplus to sharcholders - 1,056 1,056 - (5,485} (5,485)

Other camprehensive income

ftems that will be reclassified 1o statement of
income in subseguent periods

- Fair value change in  available for sale
investiments -~ unreahized 4064 - 4,064 25,605 - 25,005

- Fair value change in reserve for takaful activitics
-- unrealized {4.004) . {4,164 {25,005) - {25,005)

frems thar will not be reclassified to statement af
income in subsequent periods

- Remeasurcments of  relirement benefitl
olligations (38) - {38) {175) - {175)

Total comprehensivie income/ (fess) for the year (38) 1,056 1,018 {175} {5,48%) {3,660)

Page 3o
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24, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

Statement of cash flows

SR 000
2018 2017
Takafut Sharcholders’ Takali Sharcholders’
Qperations Operations Total Onerations Qperalions Totat

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net income £ (loss) lor the year - 1,656 1,056 - {3,485 {5,485
Adjustment for non-cash ilems:
Amortisation - 610 610 - 499 499
Depreciation - 83 83 - 80 &0
Income from sukuk - (4,237} {4.237) - {5,035} {5,035
Gain on sale of lixed assels - - - - (1% (1
Sharcholders’ appropriation lrom deficit/ surplus {4.844) 4,844 - (10,359) 10,359 -
Provision of impairmenl on  contribution  and
reiakaful receivables 304 - 504 1,052 - 1,052
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 1,046 - 1,046 37 - 37

{3.294) 2,356 (938) {0,270} 399 (8,871}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contributions and relakalul receivable, nel 1,342 - 1,342 (2,510} - {2,510}
Retakaful share of uneamed contribulions 3,833 - 3,833 3,174 - 3imM
Relakaftut share of oulstanding claims 8,352 - 8,352 (9,719 - 9,719
Deferred policy acguisition costs {19%) - (195) 261 - 261
Available-Ter-sale Ninancial assets 28,922 - 28,922 (27.297) - (27,297
Prepaid expenses and other asscts 620 {t14) 506 117 {101} 16
Accrucd and other tabilitics Mt (79) 668 5,335 100 5435
Retakalul balances payable (2,694) - (2,694) 559 - 559
(iross uncarned contributions {4,824) - (4,524) {6.185) - {6,185}
Unearned relakafitl commission {265) - {265) {239) - {239)
(ross outstanding claims {12,343) - (12,343) 11,227 - 11,227
Unexpired risk reserve {2,540) - (2,54 5,531 - 5,53
Non-unit reserve 1,268 - 1,268 4,311 - 4,311
Reserve for lakalhl activities {28,932) - {28,922) 27,297 - 27297
Surplus paid - - - 47} - {47)

(9,993) 2,163 (7,830) 2,545 398 2,943
Employees” end-of-scrvice benefits paid (3,250 - (3,259 {151) - {151)
Fakat and 1ax paid - {4,452) (4,452) - (5,663} (5,663)
Net cash {used in) gencrated from operating activities (13,252) {2,289 {18,541) 2,364 {5,263} 2,871)
CASHELOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Malurity of held-to-maturity Nnancial asscls - 17,000 17,000 - 30,000 50,000
Income received from sukuk - 4,12 4,202 - 5,266 5,266
Purchase of intangible asscls - (741) {741) - {1,104) {1.104)
Purchase of Nxed assets - - - - (200 {201)
Proceeds from sale of Nixed assects - - - B 19 19
et cash generated fron investing activities - 20,461 20,461 - 53,980 53,980
CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
3ue fromy/ (10) sharcholders’/ Lakaful operations, nel 29,213 {29,213} - 5,823 {5,82%) -
MNel change in cash and cash cquivalents 15,961 {11,041} 4,920 {3,42%) 54,538 51,109
Cash and cash equivalonts, beginning of the year 33,746 205,353 239,099 37,175 150,815 187,990
Cash and cash cquivalents, end of the year 49,707 194,312 244,019 33,746 215,353 239,099
Non-cash supplemental information:
Nel change in fair value of available for sale
invesiments 4,064 - 4,064 25,005 - 25,008

P
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25

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk governance

The Company's risk governance is manifested in a set of estabtished policies, procedures and controls which uses
the existing organizational structure to nieet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceplance commensurate with the risk appetite and a strategic plan approved by the Board of
Directors. The Company is exposed 1o takaful, retakaful, commission rate, market and asset liability management,
credit, liquidity, currency and operationat rigks,

A cohesive organizational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor and
control risks, SABB Takaful Company adopis the “Three Lines of Defence’ framework as part of the Risk
Goverpance Framework. Ownership of risk management responsibilities are entrusted across the first line of
defence (Function owners), whilst monitoring responsibilities are entrusted with the Second Line (Risk
Management Function). Third Line of Defence (Internal Audif) is entrusted with independent oversight
responsibilities.

Board of Directors

Review and approve the overall Enterprise Risk Management (ERM} Framework.
Review and approve the Risk strategy and ensure its alignment to the overall business strategy.
Review and approve the overall risk appetite statement and risk tolerance,

Provide key inputs to the senior management in terms of strategic inifiatives SABB Takaful will
undertake in order te stream line the risk management capabilities subsequently.

Review and approve the annual risk management plan

Board Risk Committee

Reviews the overall ERM Framework propesed by Risk Management function/Risk Manager and
endorses the Framework to the Board of Directors for final approval.

Reviews the Risk Strategy and Risk Appetite proposed by Risk Management function/Chief Risk Officer
and endorses it to the Board of Directors for final approval.

Reviews the risk reports prepared by the Risk Management function/ Chief Risk Officer and determines
an appropriate response 10 identified risks in line with the risk appetite including proposing suitable risk
management sirategies such as transferring risk (for example use of re-insurance), reducing risk (for
exaniple improving internal controls) or introducing strategic risk initiatives.

Reviews the risk management system capabilities of SABB Takaful and propose action-plan if required.

Reviews the key Risk Policy and Procedures prepared by the Risk Management function/ Chief Risk
Officer and endorses it to the Board of Directors for final approval,

Reviews the annual Risk Management plan of SABI Takaful as prepared by the Risk Management
function/ Chief Risk Officer and endorse it to the Board of Directors for final approval,

To discuss and agree risk matters related to day-to-day management of the business. For avoidance of any
doubts, any decision related to the policy maltters, are within the authority of the Board of Directors,
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25 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk governance {continued)

Chicf Risk Officer (CRO)
» Develops & Risk Management Framework, Risk Management Policy which clearly outlines all the
different types of risk categories relevant to SABIB Takaful and its approach to manage these risks. The
roles and responsibilities across SABB Takaful with regard to managing the risks has also been defined.

» [acilitates development of risk register outlining all the different risks faced by SABB Takaful across
various lines of businesses and functions by interacting with the respective Department Heads,

¢+ Continuously monitors the risk profile of SABB Takaful ensuring material risks and key controls are
menitored and overal! risk appetite is adhered to.

» Based on results of the risk assessments, key risks were identified for SABB Takaful and submitted to the
Board Risk Committee for their review and endorsement.

+  Monitors action plan as developed by business for mitigating various risks.
¢ Develop tracking mechanism to ensure the mitigating actions are remediated within agreed timelines.

¢ [Develops a reporting and monitoring framework that helps management identify, assess, report and
manage risks across the business ensuring compliance with the Policy and Risk Appetite Framework
defined.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized as follows:

a) Takaful risk

The principal risk the Company faces under takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the
timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of fong-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is 10
ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The Company enters into retakaful contracts as part of its risks mitigation programme. Retakaful contribution
ceded is placed on both a proportional and non-preportional basis. The majority of proportional retakful is quota—
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company to certain classes of business.
Non-proportional reinsurance is primarily excess-of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company’s net
exposure to catastrephe losses. Retention limits for the excess—of-loss reinsurance vary by product line and
territory.

Amounts recoverable from retakaful contracts are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provision and are in accordance with the retakful contracts. Although the Company has retakaful arrangements, it
is not relieved of its direcl obligations 1o its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to
retakaful contributions ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its ebligations assumed under such
retakaful arrangements. The Company’s placement of retakaful contributions is diversified such that it is neither
dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single
retakaful contract.
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a) TFakaful risk (continued)
Family takaful

For individual family takaful, the main risk is the mortality and morbidity (permanent or temporary disability) of
the insured. This is managed through an effective and clearly defined underwriting strategy. There are various
levels of underwriting carried owt, including declaration of good health, medical questionnaire, reports from
specialisis/consultants and comprehensive medical tests. The Company also assesses financial, lifestyle and
occupational information to ascertain the degree of risk carried by the insured and to determine whether or not it
could be classified as a standard life.

For group takaful, the main risks are mortality and morbidity (permanent or temporary disability) of the insured.
The montality risk is compounded due to the concentration of lives, for e.g. employees in the same workplace. The
Company has a clearly defined underwriting strategy. There are various levels of underwriting carried out,
including declaration of good health, medical questionnaire, reports from specialists/consultants and
comprehensive medical tests. The Company also looks at the nature of activity carried out by the group, group
size, mix of lives by gecgraphical regions, cultural background and manual/mon-manual worker split.

The individual family and group takaful portfolios are protected through an efficient re-takaful arrangement which
protects the Company from adverse mortality/morbidity experience.

General takaful

The Company issues short term general takaful policies and they are expected to produce only short tail claims,
therefore it is unlikely to have significant reserve movements. This helps 1o mitigate general takaful risk. Major
products include:

Property all risk, fire, personal accident products
For property takaful contracts, the main risks are fire and business interruption. The Company has only
underwritten policies for properties containing fire detection equipments and other safety measures.

These contracts are underwritten by reference 10 the replacement value of the properties and contents insured. The
cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the time taken to restart operations which
{eads to business interruptions are the main factors that influence the level of claims. The Company has retakaful
cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual claim.

For personal accident takaful contracts, the main risks are personal accidents that could happen to the takaful
product holders. The Company has retakaful cover under excess of loss treaty for such damage to limit losses for
any individual claim.

Marine cargo product
For marine takaful the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or partial
loss of cargoes,

‘The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well diversified in terms of
cargo, vessels and shipping routes covered. The Company has retakaful cover to lhmit losses for any individual
claim.

Freguency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, {lood, environmental
and economical, atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk
through the measures described above. The company has limited its risk by imposing maximum claim amounts on
certain contracts as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure 10 catastrophic events
(e.g., hurricanes, ¢arthguakes and flood damage). The purpese of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is
to limi exposure to catastrophes based on the Company’s risk appetite as decided by management. The overall aim
is currently to restrict the impact of a single catastrophic event to, in case of GT: SAR 136 million & in case of FT:
SAR | miliion, which together approximate 40 % of shareholders’ equity (SAR 346 million). The Board may
decide 1o increase or decrease the maximum tolerances based on market cenditions and other factors,
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a) Takaful risk (continued)

Concentration of takaful risk

The Company moenitors concentration of takaful risks primarily by class of business. For fire and property risk a
particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as
a single lecation. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a
single risk while assessing concentration of risk, The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to
individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels
acceplable to the Company. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company does not have any significant
concentration of takaful risk, The table below sets out the concentration of the outstanding claims and unearned
premiums by business segments at the reporting date:

Outstanding Chirstanding {ross Net
s : ” ? nearne
2018 (Amounts in SAR ’000) re.i'erfgfﬂ Grosy Re.i'ep_:fc:_ﬁ Net (';:::ii:::ftzu cc:::f:f;n::;i:s
Individual Family 1,285 1,059 - -
Group Family 38,040 8,554 1,431 946
General Takaful 31,861 3.843 8,134 1,650
71,186 13,456 9,565 2,5%6
Outstanding Outstanding (irosy At
2017 (Amounts in SAR "000) hitity chain wiegried i ic
reserves - (iross Reserves - Nei coniributions contribntions
Individual Family 2,081 1,643 - -
Group Family 57,278 13,082 1,616 1,030
General Takaful 24,170 2,722 12,773 2,557
83,529 17,447 14,389 3,587

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of
outstanding claims, whether reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs, The principal
assumption underlying the lability estimates is that the Company’s fulure claims development will follow a
similar pattern to past claims development experience, This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs,
claim handling costs, c¢laim inflation factors and claim numbers for each accident year. Additional gualitative
Judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example: one--off
occurrence; changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming: economic conditions: as well as internal
factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to
assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the
estimates. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders
arising from claims made under takaful contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about
several factors involving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results
may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments
are used to assess the extenl 1o which past trends may not apply in the fulure, for example one-off cccurrence,
changes in market faclors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to
assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the
estimates.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculatling the outstanding ¢laim reserve is intended to result in
peutral reasonable estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes il very
difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims.
Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances,
information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are
reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is availabie,
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a} Takaful risk (continued)
Process used fo decide on assumptions (continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. The
estimation process takes inlo account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The ultimate cost of oulstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actvarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods,

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs, As such, these methods extrapelate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident years, but can aiso be further analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss
adjuster estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. [n most cases, no explicit
assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative
judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off
occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as inlernal factors such as portfolio mix, policy
features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimale cost of claims that present the
likely outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertaintics invelved.

The contribution Habilities have been determined such that the total contribution liability provisions (uncarned
contribution reserve and contribution deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to
service the future expecled claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as at the staiement of
financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the
experience during the expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable.

Sensitivity of claims

The Company believes that the claim tiabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year-end are adequate.
However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the
financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. it has not been
possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation
process,

A hypaothetical change in the claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting result as follows:

2018 2017
Impact of change in net claim ratio by +7/- 10% Amount in SAR ‘000
Accident and Liability 42 10
Marine 280 141
Properly 20 46

Group 1,149 1,093

Page - 54
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a) Takaful risk (continued)
Claims development

The following reflects the cumulative incurred claims for each successive accident year at cach financial position
date, together with the cumulative payments to date.

The development of takaful liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value
of the claims.

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its takaful business in order to protect against
adverse future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes
more certain, adverse claims experiences will be climinated which results in the release of reserves from earlier
accident years. [n order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company will transfer much of this release to the
current accident year reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is much greater uncertainty
attached to the ultimate cost of claims.

Claims development table

Claimy development table gross of reinsuranice:

Amounts in SAR ‘000

m3i&

Accident year carlier 2014 2015 2016 20t7 2018 Total
stimate of ultimate claim loss

- At end of accident year 193,706 43,350 51,118 63,245 63,579 54,787 54,787
- One year later 177,519 44,884 47,611 57,030 48,474 - 48,474
- Two years later 171,977 44,471 45,029 54,691 - - 54,691
- Three years later 175,313 44,471 44,204 - - - 44,204
- Four years later 155,452 44,470 - - - - 44,470
- Five years later 154,767 N 3 ) - - 134,767
Current gstimate of cumulative clains 154,767 44,470 44,204 54,691 48,414 54,787 401,392
Cunwlative payments to date 143,568 43,440 43,512 51,067 46,243 27,272 355102
Outstanding claim reserves 11,198 1,030 692 3,624 2,230 27,516 46,290
Add: Incarred but nol reported (IBNR) and

other reserves 24,890
Liability recognized in the stalement of

financial position 71,186

012&

Accident year carlier 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Lstimate of ultimate claim lass

- Al end of accident year 159,352 34,354 45,350 S1L1L8 63,245 63,577 63,577
- One year later 139,109 38410 44,884 47,611 57.030 - 57,030
- ‘Fwao years later 135,179 36,798 44,471 45029 - - 45,029
- Three years later 138,810 36,503 44,41 - - - 44471
- Four years later 118,949 36,503 - - - - 36,503
- Five years later 118,264 - - - - - 118,204
Cwrrent estimate of cumulative claims 118,264 36,503 44,471 45,029 57,030 63,577 364,873
Cumutative payments (o date 118,264 25,304 43,441 43,189 45,651 33915 309,704
Outstanding claim rescrves - 11,198 1,030 1,840 11,379 29,662 55,109
Add: Incurred but nol reported (IBNR) and 28420
other reserves '
Liability recognized in the stalement of 83.529

financial position
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a) Takaful risk (continued)

Claims development table {continued)

Claims development table net of reinsurance:

Amounts in SAR Q00

2013 &
Accident year carlicy 2014 2005 2016 2017 2018 Total
Estimate of uitimate claim loss
- Al end of accident year 54,570 13,197 13,279 16,596 15462 11,493 11,493
- One year later 46,277 12,941 12,537 15,463 12,192 . 12,192
- Two years later 44,838 12,776 11,701 14,995 . - 14,995
- Thee years later 44,975 12,776 11,476 - - - 11,476
- Four YCArs later 44,852 12,775 - - - - 12,775
- IFive years later 44,771 - - - - - 44,71
Current estimate ol cumulalive claims 44,771 2,775 11,476 14,995 12,19 11,493 107,702
Cunilative payments to date 44,771 12,775 11,301 14,196 11,579 6,453 101,074
Outstanding claim rescrves - - 175 800 613 3,040 6,628
Add: Incurred but not reported (IBNR) and
ather reserves 6,828
Liability recognized in the statement off
financial position 13,456
2012 &
Accldent year carlier 2013 2014 2015 2046 2017 Total
Estimate of ultimate claim loss
- Alend of accident year 44,095 10,475 13,197 13,279 16,546 15,459 15,459
- One year later 37,605 8,672 12,941 12,537 15,463 - 15,463
- Two years later 36,547 8,291 12,776 11,701 - - 11,701
- Three years later 36,742 8,232 12,776 - . - 12,776
- Four ycars later 36,620 8,231 - - - . 8,231
- Iive years later 36,539 - - - - - 36,539
Current estimate of cumulalive claims 36,539 8,231 12,776 11,701 15,463 15,459 100,169
Cumulative payments to date 36,539 8,231 12,776 11,196 12,803 9,063 90,607
Ouistanding claim reserves - - - 505 2,660 6,396 9,561
Add: Incurred but not reported (IBNR) and 7886
other reserves s
{iability recognized in the statement of 17,447

financial position

Ao

Faoe 3
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b) Retakaful risk

In order to minimize its financial exposure to potential losses arising from large claims the Company enters into
agreements with other parties for retakaful purposes. Such retakaful arrangements provide for preater
diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and
provide addilienal capacity for growth. A significant pertion of the retakaful is effected under treaty, facultative
and excess-of-loss retakaful contracts,

In line with the objective to provide first-class security 10 clients and continued profilability 1o shareholders, the
Company adopts a conservative philosophy on underwriting of risks and in arranging its reinsurance programs.

Further, to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers and menitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic
regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers, The Company considers retakaful risk to be
minimal as it deals with reinsurers with seund credit ratings,

Retakaful contracts do not relieve the Company from ils obligations to policyholders and as a resull the Company
remains liable for the portion of cutstanding claims reinsured 1o the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the
obligations under the retakaful contracts.

¢} Market risk and asset liability management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market
interest rates (commission rate risk) and market prices {other price risk).

- The Company’'s market risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes market risk
for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the
Company risk committee. The policy is reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk
environment.

- Guidelines are sei for asset atlocation and portfolio limit structure, to ensure that assets back specific
policyholders’ liabilitics and that assets are held to deliver income and gains for policyholders which are in
line with their expectations.

- The Company stipulates diversification benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical area, as the
Company is exposed to guaranteed bonuses, cash and annuity options when inlerest rates fall.

- There is strict contrel over hedging activities {e.g., equity derivalives are only permitted to be held to
facilitate portfolio management or 1o reduce investment risk).

The Company issues unit-linked investment policies. In the unit linked business, the planholder bears the
investment risk on the assets held in the unit-linked funds as the policy beneflits are directly linked to the value of
the assets in the fund. Therefore, the Company has no material risk on unit-linked financial assets.
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c) Market risk and asset liability management (continued)

The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels
and is consistent with the avatlable capital. While the Beard gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management
function related to market risk is mainly the responsibility of Investment Committee team. The team prepares
forecasts showing the effects of various possible changes in market conditions related to risk exposures. Thig risk is
being mitigated through the proper selection of securities. Company maintaing diversified portfolio and performs
regular monitoring of developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect sukuk market
movements are monitored, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rales.

The Company’s transactions are principally in Saudi Arabian Riyals and US Dollar. Management monitors the
fluctuations in currency exchange rales and acts accordingly and believes that the foreign currency risk is not

significant.

Sensitivity analysis - Currency risk;

2018 2017
SAR’000
Impact on carrying amount by /- 10% in exchauge rates
Re-insurance balances receivables
US Dollars 636 195

Connmission Rate Risk

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk
to the Company is the risk of changes in commission rales reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate
bearing securities. The Commission rate risk is limited by monitoring changes in commission rates and by
investing in floating rate instruments, The Company has no significant concentration of commission rate risk.

Comimission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affect future profitability or
the fair values of financial instruments, The Company has no significant concentration of commission rate risk,

The sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed changes in the commission rates, with all other variable
held constant, on the Company’s profit for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets held at 31 December
2018. A hypothetical 30 basis points change in the weighted average commission rate of the [loating rate financial
assets balances at 31 December 2018 would impact commission income by approximately SAR 877 thousand
(2017: SAR 902 thousand) annually in aggregate.

Commission bearing investments of the Company comprise of murabaha deposits and sukuks. Murabaha deposits
are short term in nature which will be matured within a year and the maturity profile of sukuks is disclosed in
note 4.

The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at December 31,
2018 and 2017 are as fellows:
Non-commission

Amount in SAR 000 Less than | year More than 1 year bearing, Total
Insurance Operations

2018 36,696 - - 30,696
2017 15,040 - - 15,040
Sharcholders® Operations

2018 241,684 70,609 - 312,353
2017 215,334 120,821 - 336,155

RIS A
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¢) Market risk and asset Hability management (continued)

Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's investmenis amounting to SAR 695 million (2017: SAR 732 million) are susceptible 10 market
price risk arising from uncertainty about the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of
market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio and by actively monitoring the developments in markets.

The impact of hypothetical change of +/- 10% increase in the market prices of investments on Company's profit
would be as follows:

Fair value change Effect on Compuny’s profit
SAR’600 SAR'000
December 31, 2018 /- 69,516 +/. 2,065
December 31, 2017 +/- 73,223 Afe 2175

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assets of
future movements in the value of investments held by the Company,

d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one parly 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
parly to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit
risk exposure to the Company is the cartying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position,

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure 10 ¢redit risk:

» To minimize its exposure to significant josses from retakaful insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its retakaful counterparties. Accordingly, as a pre-requisite, the parties with whom
retakaful is affected are required to have a minimum acceptable security rating level affirming their
financial strength.

. The Company only enters into takaful and retakaful contracts with recognized, creditworthy third parties. 1t
is the Company's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivables from takaful and retakaful contracts are monitored on an
engoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure Lo bad debts.

* The Company seeks to limit the credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables,
. Considering the nature of held-lo-maturity investments, there is a minimal credil risk. Cash and cash

equivalents are maintained with local banks approved by management. Accordingly, as a pre-requisile, the
banks with whom cash and cash equivalents are maintained are required to have a minimum acceptable
security rating level affirming their financiat sirength,

i
o o
g
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d) Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the statement of
financial position.

2018
SAR’000
Takaful
Operations Shareholders

Contributions and retakaful receivable, net 12,650 -
Retakaful share of outstanding claims 57,730 -
Cash and cash equivalents 49,707 194,312
Held-to-maturity financial assets - 120,899
Statutory depasit - 34,000
Other recetvables 440 -

120,527 349,211

2017
SAR'000
Takaful
COperations Shareholders

Contributions and retakaful receivable, net 14,496 -
Retakafui share of cutstanding claitns 66,082 -
Cash and cash equivalents 33,746 205,353
Held-to-maturity financial assets - 137,864
Statutory deposit - 34,000
Other receivables 860 -

115,184 371217

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry faciors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure.
All the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in Saudi Arabia. The Company’s portfolio of financial
instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Amount in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2007 2018 2017
Invesiment grade Non-inveshment grade Unrated

Investments;

Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 352,115 381,037

Held-to-maturity financial asscts 20,089 25,078 - - 160,810 112,786

Contributions and retakaful

reccivable, net 6,359 1,950 - - 6,291 12,546
26,448 27,028 - - 459,216 506,369
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) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its

financial instruments. In respect of catastrophic events, there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing
difference between gross cash cutflows and expected retakaful recoveries.

The following policics and procedures are in place to mitipate the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk:

. A Company liquidity risk policy setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity
risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is menitored and exposures and breaches are reported to
the Risk Committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk
envirgnmenl,

» Set guidelines on asset allocations, pertfolio limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to
ensure sufficient funding available to meet takaful obligations.

» Setting up contingency funding plans which specify minimum proportions of funds to meet emergency
calls as well as specifying cvents that would trigger such plans.

. The Company’s catastrophic excess-of-loss retakaful contracts contain clauses permilting the inmumediate
draw down of funds to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain size.

Maturity Profiles

The 1able below summarizes the maturity profile of the assets and Habilities (for managing Hquidity risk) of the
Company based on remaining expected contractual obligations. For takaful contract liabilities and retakaful assets,
maturity profiles are determined based on the estimated timing of net cash outflows from the recognized takaful
labilities, Unit linked liabilities are repayable or transferable on demand and are included in the up to one year
column. Repayments that are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

2018
Takaful Operations Sharcholders
Up to Maore than Upto More than
one year one year Total onc year one year Total
SAR’00C SAR’000 SAR000 SAR000 SAR'000 SAR'000
ASSETS
Available-for-sale Nnancial assels 382,115 ~ 352,115 - - -
Held-to-malturily financial asscts - - - 50,230 70,669 120,899
Contributions and retakalul receivable, net 12,650 - 12,650 - - -
Retakalul share of oulstanding claims 57,730 - 57,730 - - -
Cash and cash cquivalens 49,707 - 49,707 194,312 - 194,312
472,202 - 472,202 244,542 70,669 315,211
LIABILITIES
Reserve for lakaful activilies 352,115 - 352,115 - - -
Gross outstanding claims 71,186 - 71,186 - - -
Retakalul balances payable 3,880 - 5,880 - - -
Accrucd and other liabilitics 17,964 - 17,964 1.414 - 1,414

447,145 - 447,145 1,414 - 1414
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25 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
¢} Liguidity risk (continued)
2017
Takafil Operations Shareholders
Up to Maore than one Up o More than one
one year year Total one year year Total
SAR000 SAR Q00 SAR'000 SARMO00 SAR00 SAR’000

ASSETS
Available-Tor-sale Nnancial assets 38,037 - 381,037 - - -
Held-lo-maturity financial assets - - - 17,043 120,821 137,864
Contributions and retakaful receivable, nel 14,496 - 14,496 - - -
Relakalul share of outslanding claims 606,082 - 66,082 - - -
Cash and cash cquivalenis 33,746 - 33,746 203,353 . 205,353

495,361 - 495,361 222,394 120,821 343,217
LIABILITIES
Reserve for takaful activitics 381,037 - 381,037 - N -
Gross outstanding claims 83,529 - 83,320 - " -
Relakalul batances payable 8,374 - 8.374 - - -
Accrued and other liabilitics 17,217 - 17,217 1,493 - 1,493

490,357 - 490,357 1,493 - 1,493

f

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at
the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepled standards of investment management behaviour.
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s cbjcctive is fo manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage 10 its
reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns {or investors,

The primaty responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board
of Directors, This responsibilily encompasses the controls in the foflowing areas:

requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transaclions;

compliance with regulatery and other legal requirements;

documentation of controls and procedures;

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified; and

cthical and business standards.

Senior management ensures that the Company's staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective
communication related to operational risk management.

i a g
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25 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
g) Capital management

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximize sharcholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalis between reported and required capital Jevels on a
regular basis, Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk
characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issuc shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’
capital requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through
the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable 1o
equity holders comprising paid share capital, reserves and accumulated losses,

As per guidelines faid out by SAMA in Article 66 of the Implementing Insurance Regulations detaiting the solvency
margin required 1o be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the
following three methods as per SAMA Implementing Regulations:

. Minimum Capilal Requirement of SAR 100 million
. Premium Solvency Margin
- Claims Solvency Margin

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements with sound solvency margin, The capilal
structure of the Company as at December 31, 2018 consists of paid-up share capital of SAR 340 million, statulory
reserves of SAR 14.8 million and accumuiated losses of SAR 8.5 million (December 31, 2017: paid-up share capital of
SAR 340 million, statutory reserves of SAR 14.6 million and accumulated losses of SAR 3.3 million in the statement of
financial position.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements during the reported financizl peried.

26 RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current vear. These
changes were made for better presentation of batances and transactions in the financial statements of the Company.,

27 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Direciors on 30 Jummada I1 [440H, corresponding to
7 March 2019,
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